
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

AGENDA  
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL 
 

 
Date: Friday, 30 August 2019 
  
Time: 3.00 pm 
  
Venue: Council Chamber - Civic Offices 

 
 
Members:  
Councillor T Davies (Chairman) 

 
Councillor P J Davies (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillors K A Barton 

J E Butts 

S Cunningham 

J S Forrest 

N J Walker 

 
Deputies: J G Kelly 

G Fazackarley 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Planning and Development 
Scrutiny Panel meeting held on the 10 May 2019. 
 

3. Chairman's Announcements  

4. Declarations of Interest and Disclosures of Advice or Directions  

 To receive and declarations of interest from Members in accordance with the 
Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct and disclosures of advice or 
directions received from Group Leaders or Political Groups, in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 

5. Deputations  

 To receive any deputations of which notice has been lodged. 
 

6. Interim Nitrogen Mitigation Solution (Pages 9 - 18) 

 To receive a report from the Head of Stategic Planning and Regeneration on the 
Interim Nitrogen Mitigation Solution. 
 

7. Executive Business (Pages 19 - 20) 

 To consider any items of business dealt with by the Executive since the last meeting 
of the Panel, that falls under the remit of Planning and Development Portfolio. This 
will include any decisions taken by individual Members during the same time period. 
 

(1) Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan: Examiner's Report and Referendum 
(Pages 21 - 22) 

(2) Warsash Neighbourhood Plan: Applications for Warsash Neighbourhood 
Forum and Warsash Neighbourhood Area (Pages 23 - 24) 

8. Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel Priorities  

 To provide an opportunity for Members to consider the scrutiny priorities for the 
Planning and Development Panel. 
 

 
P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 
Civic Offices 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
21 August 2019 

Page 2

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/


 

 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 

Tel:01329 236100 
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk 

Page 3

tel:01329
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk




 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes of the 
Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel 

 

(to be confirmed at the next meeting) 

 
Date: Friday, 10 May 2019 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 

PRESENT:  

Councillor T Davies (Chairman) 
 

Councillor P J Davies (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors: J S Forrest, N J Walker, J G Kelly (deputising for S 
Cunningham) and G Fazackarley (deputising for K A Barton) 
 

 
Also 
Present: 

K D Evans, R H Price, JP and Mrs K K Trott 
 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Planning and Development 
Scrutiny Panel 

 10 May 2019 

 

 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies of absence were received from Councillor K Barton and Councillor S 
Cunningham. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
It was AGREED that the Minutes of the Planning and Development Scrutiny 
Panel held on the 12 March 2019 be confirmed and signed as a correct 
record.  
 

3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman made the following announcement -  
 
Before we start the meeting, I would just like to run through how things will 
proceed. 
 
Item 6 on the agenda, on the Housing Delivery Test position, is a report for 
noting. Officers will present the report along with some supporting slides. 
Members will then have the opportunity to ask questions for clarification.  
 
Item 7 is giving Members the opportunity to pre-scrutinise the consultation 
document for the Local Plan – Issues and Options. Any comments will be 
tabled at the Executive at Monday’s meeting.  
 
Officers will take Members through the consultation document at Appendix A, 
page by page, asking for comments on each heading in turn. Members can 
recommend any; additions, amendments or deletions to the document and can 
suggest ideas on the content of the consultation. 
 
At this stage I would also like to stress that it is not the purpose of the Panel to 
discuss specific development sites. We are asked only for our opinion around 
the questioning for the potential areas for new growth in the report. 
 
Please avoid making any comments on specific development sites or existing 
planning applications. To do so may result in you being pre-determined and 
could put at risk your ability to vote on later stages of the Local Plan as it goes 
through its process of decisions at Council and Planning Committee. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR 
DIRECTIONS  
 
Councillor G Fazackarley declared a personal interest for Item 7, as he works 
for the First Bus Group. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations made at this meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Planning and Development 
Scrutiny Panel 

 10 May 2019 

 

 

6. CURRENT POSITION ON HOUSING DELIVERY TEST  
 
The Panel considered a report along with supporting slides on the current 
Housing Delivery Test position delivered by Officers. 
 
Officers took Members of the Panel through the report, clarifying areas in 
greater detail. Members asked questions for clarification and stressed their 
concern with how the Council is to meet the ever-increasing housing delivery 
figures. Officers advised that Central Government are working to encourage all 
Local Authorities to diversify the products available on the market and this 
along with a higher level of permissions should assist in increasing delivery 
rates. 
 
Cllr Kelly queried the figures in Table 1.  Officers have checked and cannot 
find an error. 
 
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel considered 
the contents of the report for information. 
 

7. LOCAL PLAN - ISSUES AND OPTIONS  
 
The Panel considered a report along with supporting slides delivered by 
Officers on the Local Plan – Issues and Options.  
 
Councillor G Fazackarley declared a personal interest on this item as he works 
for the First Bus Group. 
 
(Councillor P Davies left the meeting during discussions on this item) 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman Councillor K Evans joined in discussions on 
this item. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman Councillor Mrs K K Trott joined in discussions 
on this item. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman Councillor R H Price, JP joined in discussions 
on this item. 
 
Officers took Members through the report, asking Members to recommend any 
additions, amendments or deletions to the consultation document, focusing on 
each heading in turn. 
 
The recommendations for additions, amendments and deletions made by the 
Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel are appended to these minutes as 
Appendix 1.  These recommendations will be referred to the meeting of the 
Executive to be held on Monday 13 May 2019.  
 
RESOLVED that, having considered the contents of the report, the Planning 
and Development Scrutiny Panel agrees to refer the recommendations 
appended to the minutes as Appendix 1 to the meeting of the Executive to be 
held on Monday 13 May 2019. 
 
 

Page 7



Planning and Development 
Scrutiny Panel 

 10 May 2019 

 

 

 
8. EXECUTIVE BUSINESS  

 
The Panel considered the Executive items of business which fall under the 
remit of the Planning and Development Portfolio, including individual Executive 
Member decisions, that have taken place since the last meeting of the Panel 
on the 12 March 2019. 
 
The Panel considered the decisions shown at item 8(1) 
 
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel considered 
the following item of Executive Business. 
 
(1) Local Development Scheme  
 
No comments received. 
 

9. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES  
 
Members considered the Panels Scrutiny Priorities and at this time had no 
additions to add to the current Scrutiny Plan. The Head of Planning Strategy 
and Regeneration addressed the Panel to confirm that an item updating 
Members on Welborne will be brought to the 25 June 2019 meeting and any 
additions to the agenda would be discussed through the Chairman. 
 
RESOLVED that the Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel considered 
the scrutiny priorities for the Panel. 
 

(The meeting started at 4.30 pm 
and ended at 7.05 pm). 

 
 

Page 8



 

 
 

Report to 
Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel 

 
 
 
Date: 30 August 2019  
 
Report of: Head of Strategic Planning and Regeneration  
 
Subject: Interim Nitrogen Mitigation Solution 
 
 
  
 

SUMMARY 

The report attached as Appendix A, details the present situation in the Planning Service in 
relation to advice from Natural England, the statutory advisor on protected sites, that 
developments in the Borough must be nitrogen neutral in order to mitigate a likely significant 
effect on internationally important protected sites in the Solent.  As a result, planning 
permissions have been curtailed for a number of months.  The report details a package of 
measures which together form an interim mitigation solution which would move the Council 
towards a position of issuing planning permissions. 

 

At the 02 September 2019 Executive, Executive Members will be asked to approve the 
approach to mitigation as set out in the report (Appendix A). This is an opportunity for the 
Scrutiny Panel to provide comment on the content of the report and the proposed approach 
for the Executive to consider. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Members are invited to consider the report and pass any comments to the Executive. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6





Appendix A 

 
 

Report to the Executive for Decision 
02 September 2019 

 

Portfolio: Planning and Development 

Subject:   Interim Nitrogen Mitigation Solution 

Report of: Director of Planning and Regeneration 

Corporate Priorities: Protect and Enhance the Environment 

  

Purpose:  
To consider the Interim Nitrate Mitigation Solution for Fareham Borough Council. 
 

 

Executive summary: 
This report details the present situation in the Planning Service in relation to advice 
from Natural England, the statutory advisor on protected sites, that developments in 
the Borough must be nitrogen neutral in order to mitigate a likely significant effect on 
internationally important protected sites in the Solent.  As a result, planning 
permissions have been curtailed for a number of months.  The report details a 
package of measures which together form an interim mitigation solution which would 
move the Council towards a position of issuing planning permissions. 
 

 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Executive: 
 

(a) approves the approach to mitigation as set out in paragraph 16 of the report; 
and; 
 

(b) notes that the Planning Committee will be advised of the mitigation approach 
agreed by the Executive, as a material planning consideration in their 
determination of planning applications. 

 
 

 

Reason: 
To ensure sufficient options for mitigation to address any adverse effect of 
wastewater upon European Sites from new residential and overnight 
accommodation.  
 

Page 11



Appendix A 

 

Cost of proposals: 
The cost of the proposal will be at no overall cost to the Council in the medium term, 
however there may be some up-front costs to initiate some of the proposals which 
can be met from within existing budgets. 

 
 
Background papers: None 
  
    
Reference papers: None  

Page 12



 

 
 

 

 
 

Executive Briefing Paper 
 

Date:   02 September 2019 

Subject:   Interim Nitrogen Mitigation Solution 

Briefing 
by:   

Director of Planning and Regeneration 

Portfolio:   Planning and Development 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This report outlines the issue surrounding nitrates in the Solent, the advice from 
Natural England as statutory advisors on European Sites, and the interim nitrogen 
mitigation solution.  This report seeks Executive approval for the mitigation solution 
set out in the report, which will be a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications.   

BACKGROUND 

Legal framework  

2. The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017 as amended), 
hereafter referred to as the Habitats Regulations is the UK’s transposition of the 
European Union Directive 92/43/EEC Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild 
Fauna and Flora. The Regulations place significant responsibilities on the Council as 
competent authority for the protection of ecology. Regulation 63 requires competent 
authorities to undertake an ‘Appropriate Assessment’ of the implications of the 
permission, if it is likely to have a significant effect on a European site.   

3. The Appropriate Assessment considers potential impacts against the conservation 
objectives of any European sites designated for their nature conservation importance.  
If a likely significant effect is predicted, it is only if the competent authority can 
determine no adverse effect on the integrity of the site having regard to any proposed 
mitigation measures that permission may be granted. Therefore, if mitigation 
measures are not available or sufficient to avoid the adverse effect, then the 
competent authority would not be able to conclude that the plan or project would not 
have an adverse effect.   

4. Such European sites include Special Protection Areas (SPA) designated to conserve 
important or threatened bird species and Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) 
designated to conserve important and rare habitats. Significant effects on European 
designated sites can be caused through a number of impact pathways such as 
direct/indirect habitat loss, increase of recreational disturbance, construction 

Page 13



Appendix A 
activities, air and water pollution. 

5. It is also necessary for the competent authority to consider not only the impact of a 
single plan or project in isolation but the likelihood of a significant effect occurring in 
combination with other plans and projects.  

Recent case law  

6. An established approach is that the Appropriate Assessment must use the 
‘precautionary principle’ when determining likely significant effects. If it is not possible 
to rule out a likely significant effect, the competent authority must work on the basis 
that one exists and undertake an Appropriate Assessment. The precautionary 
principle also dictates that there must be certainty over the effectiveness of the 
mitigation measures in order to rule out any adverse effect.  This precautionary 
principle has been reinforced by a recent case determination from the European 
Court of Justice commonly referred to as the ‘Dutch Case’.  

7. The Dutch Case also clarified the requirement that mitigation is to be secured at the 
time of carrying out an Appropriate Assessment in order for the competent authority 
to conclude with certainty that any mitigation proposed would sufficiently mitigate any 
adverse effects arising from the plan or project in question. 

Water Quality in the Solent and Natural England’s subsequent advice 

8. The Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) authorities commissioned an Integrated 
Water Management Study (IWMS) looking into the effects of planned future 
development on water quality and water resources. The IWMS noted that the majority 
of the Solent water bodies had in most cases, less than good ecological status for 
elements such as dissolved inorganic nitrogen (made up of nitrates, nitrites and 
ammonium). The IWMS also identified that some Wastewater Treatment Works 
(WwTW) would reach capacity in the early to mid-2020s and that by this point, action 
would have to be taken to ensure that these issues are satisfactorily mitigated.   
Therefore, at present, the impact on the Solent SPA and SACs from development is 
uncertain and the effectiveness of any proposed mitigation is unknown. 

9. One of the causes of a deterioration in water quality is new developments creating 
additional wastewater which is treated at WwTWs and discharged into the Solent.  
The percentage of nitrate coming from this source varies depending on the location in 
the Solent but is small (3-18%) in comparison to run-off from agriculture (20-77%) 
and background levels already in the waterbody (12-67%). 

10. Based on the existing condition of the Solent water bodies and taking into account 
the implications of the more recent Dutch case ruling, Natural England’s advice to 
competent authorities is that any new development which would result in an increase 
in ‘overnight’ stays1, should achieve nitrate neutrality in order to not have any likely 
significant effects.  The Council as competent authority under the Habitats 
Regulations, must have regard to Natural England’s advice as a statutory consultee, 
and national body responsible for the natural environment. The Council should only 
depart from the advice of Natural England for good and justified reasons.   

 

                                            
1
 This includes all new residential dwellings, Gypsy Traveller accommodation, hotels and other tourist 

accommodation 

Page 14



Appendix A 
Calculating nitrate neutrality 

11. Natural England have produced guidance on how to calculate nitrogen budgets for 
developments.  The calculations compare the existing land use to the proposed land 
use in terms of nitrate loading and use assumptions on water use and occupancy 
rates to help planning applicants determine whether more or less nitrate will come 
from the site (either through run off or via the sewerage system) if permission were 
granted. Natural England suggest that larger sites, particularly those on agricultural 
land may achieve neutrality by providing a sufficient amount of open space. 
Achieving neutrality on smaller sites and brownfield developments is likely to require 
off-site mitigation. 

12. As a result, the Council has not been able to issue planning decisions for a number 
of planning applications until they can demonstrate neutrality either on-site or via 
suitable off-site mitigation.  At present, Fareham Borough Council has in excess of 50 
undetermined planning applications (excluding Welborne) for new residential 
development under formal consideration. In total these applications propose over 
3,000 dwellings. An Appropriate Assessment will need to be carried out on all 
applications that the Council decide to permit. Twelve of the planning applications, 
comprising 916 dwellings, have a resolution to grant planning permission from the 
Council’s Planning Committee, pre-dating Natural England’s current advice.  

13. In addition, the Local Plan will need to consider the ability of developments coming 
forward to 2036 to be nitrate neutral through its own Habitats Regulations 
Assessment.  Without certainty on the impact of this development and any required 
mitigation, Natural England would most likely lodge an objection to the plan. 

Proposed approach to mitigation 

14. In order to provide mitigation for current planning applications and for the Local Plan, 
particularly where developments cannot provide on-site mitigation, it is necessary to 
find a solution that allows the Council to meet its obligations both in terms of housing 
need and as a competent authority for the Habitats Regulations. 

15. Given the complexity of the issue and the ability for some solutions to come forward 
more quickly than others, it is likely that a suite of measures will be needed to deliver 
nitrate neutrality in the Borough.  These measures could include a mix of the 
following: 

a) Management of existing agricultural land 
 

This solution involves altering the management of agricultural land to manage it in a 
way that involves the use of less nitrogen fertiliser.  This result would be less nitrogen 
entering the European sites.  Mitigation land could be publicly or privately owned and 
would be used to offset development via a legal agreement. 

  
b) Wetland creation  

 
Wetlands are a good way of stripping nitrogen from water and so by creating 
wetlands on land adjacent to watercourses or wastewater treatment works, there 
would be a reduction in the nitrogen entering the European sites.  Developer 
contributions could be secured for the creation and maintenance of such sites. 
 
 

Page 15



Appendix A 
 
c) Water efficiency measures in existing FBC housing stock 

 
As the wastewater treatment works operate on a permissible amount of nitrogen per 
litre of water, reducing the number of litres discharged from the works also reduces 
the amount of nitrogen going into the Solent.  Installing water efficiency measures in 
existing housing stock, such as Council owned housing stock, could provide sufficient 
reductions in water use to offset some new development.  Developer contributions 
could be used to fund the provision and installation of water efficiency kits. 

 
d) Improvements to Peel Common wastewater treatment works 

 
There is a need to understand the possible additional technology that could be 
employed at wastewater treatment works to strip out the maximum amount of 
nitrogen from wastewater.  Developer contributions could be secured to fund 
additional measures which are required over and above existing regulatory practices. 

 
e) Additional mitigation land secured through the Regional Habitat Creation 

Scheme 
 

Through the Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership, there is a need to create additional 
habitats along the coastline.  Additional land could be brought into this scheme, 
funded by developer contributions to create additional coastal habitats and offset 
development in the borough. 

 
f) Catchment Sensitive Farming Advisors and advice 

 
Developer contributions could be used to fund a Catchment Sensitive Farming 
Advice scheme whereby advisors would work with agricultural landowners on ways to 
minimise nitrogen input to their land.  

 
16. Further discussions are required with third parties to advance many of these options.  

Early work suggests that a combination of measures would be sufficient to provide a 
solution for housing development going forward.  This information would be 
developed in a Definitive Nitrate Mitigation Solution that would confirm the level of 
mitigation is sufficient to offset the scale of development, both for a number of current 
planning applications and the Local Plan. As the Definitive Solution is being worked 
up, the Council would be able to issue permissions with Grampian conditions, subject 
to agreement with applicants, which would prevent occupation of the dwellings until 
such a time as the Council can be satisfied that sufficient mitigation is secured to be 
able to conclude that there would be no adverse effect on the European sites.  For 
those developments that will depend upon the Council’s mitigation solution, there will 
be a financial charge to the developer secured through a legal agreement or similar.  

17. However, it is important to note that each case will be dealt with on its merits and 
different mitigation may be proposed or secured depending on the circumstances. 
For example, if the development can provide sufficient mitigation on or off-site to 
demonstrate nitrate neutrality, the planning application can be determined on that 
basis and Grampian conditions need not apply.  The Council may be able to 
conclude no adverse effect on integrity of designated sites in a number of ways. 

Agreeing the solution with Natural England 

18. Importantly, early discussions with Natural England suggest that this approach would 

Page 16



Appendix A 
be acceptable.  In practice, this means that when consulted on the Appropriate 
Assessment for a planning application, they would raise the issue of water quality 
and the need for nitrate neutrality on developments and note that mitigation is not 
secured at the present time, but will be secured via a Grampian condition.  They 
would therefore not object to the granting of planning permission.  Before discharging 
that condition, the Council would re-consult Natural England on a revised Appropriate 
Assessment demonstrating how the proposed mitigation would be secured so as to 
ensure no adverse effect on the European sites. 

Legal and Financial Implications 

19. This report sets out a suite of mitigation measures which officers consider, in 
conjunction with the Grampian condition, will allow the LPA to conclude in any 
appropriate assessment that a development will not cause an adverse effect on the 
integrity of the relevant designated site allowing the LPA to grant planning 
permission.  Each application must be treated on its merits and determined in 
accordance with section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  
Any particular mitigation measure identified for a particular application will need to be 
considered as part of the appropriate assessment for that particular application.   

20. The cost of the proposal will be at no overall cost to the Council in the medium term, 
however there may be some upfront costs to make changes to council owned 
properties or purchase additional land which can be initially met from within existing 
budgets. 

21. For those developments that will utilise the Council’s nitrogen mitigation solution, 
financial contributions will be required from the developers which will cover the 
upfront costs borne by the Council. It may be that the costs and income span more 
than one financial year, but this will be monitored closely to make sure the money is 
received correctly. 

Other considerations 

22. Officers are continuing to work with the Environment Agency to understand their role 
in relation to regulating permits for the wastewater network and the environmental 
assessments that they and Southern Water have undertaken.  In addition, through 
PfSH, the Council is responding to OFWAT consultations on appropriate levels of 
infrastructure investment and environmental mitigation funding within the Southern 
Water region.   

23. PfSH members are working collaboratively on this issue and have an ongoing 
dialogue with the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) and the Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) 
in finding a solution. The PfSH Joint Committee recently tasked the Water Quality 
Working Group with reviewing the IWMS with more up to date population figures and 
occupancy rates.   The Joint Committee will receive a further update on the situation 
in October.  

24. In addition to water quality, there is an ongoing study into the potential for increased 
nitrogen deposition from traffic on European Sites.  This air quality study will be 
important in assisting the Council to understand whether there is a likely significant 
effect from new development. 

 

Page 17



Appendix A 
Enquiries: 

For further information on this report please contact Lee Smith or Gayle Wootton (Ext 
4427 or 4328)  

Page 18



  

 
 

Report to 
Planning and Development Scrutiny Panel 

 
 
 
Date: 30 August 2019 
 
Report of: Head of Planning Strategy and Regeneration 
 
Subject: EXECUTIVE BUSINESS  
 
 
   
 

SUMMARY 

One of the key functions of this Scrutiny Panel is to hold the Executive Portfolio Holder and 
senior Officers to account in delivery of the service and the Improvement Actions identified in 
the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Corporate Vision.  
 
Members are therefore invited to consider the items of business which fall under the remit of 
the Planning and Development Portfolio and have been dealt with by the Executive since the 
last meeting of the Panel. This also includes any decisions taken by individual Executive 
Members. 
 
The relevant notices for decisions taken are attached for consideration.  
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that Members consider the items of business discharged by the Executive 
since the last meeting of the Panel and make any comments or raise any questions for 
clarification.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 7





 

 
 

FAREHAM 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

2019/20 
Decision No. 

2113 
 

Record of Decision by Executive 

Monday, 3 June 2019 

 

Portfolio Planning and Development 

Subject: Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan: Examiner's Report and 
Referendum 

Report of: Director of Planning and Regeneration 

Corporate Priority: Maintain and extend prosperity; Protect and enhance the 
environment; Providing housing choices; Strong, safe, 
inclusive and healthy communities 

 

Purpose: 
To agree that the Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan proceeds to Referendum, as 
recommended in the Examiner’s Report.  
 
The purpose of this report is to agree the next stages in the progression of the 
Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan.  The Plan has recently been subject to independent 
Examination and the report sets out the Examiner’s conclusions regarding the 
Submission (Regulation 16) Plan, including the modifications recommended to 
ensure that the Neighbourhood Plan meets the basic conditions.  This report 
recommends that subject to modifications recommended by the Examiner being 
made, the Executive agrees that the Neighbourhood Plan proceeds to a local 
Referendum.   
 

 

Options Considered: 
The Executive received a deputation in respect of this item from Mr Nick Girdler, 
Chairman of the Titchfield Village Trust. 
 
As recommendation.  
 

 

Decision: 
RESOLVED that the Executive: 
 

(a) notes the Examiner’s Report; 
 

(b) agrees the recommended modifications to make the Titchfield Neighbourhood 
Plan compliant with the basic conditions, as outlined in Appendix A to the 
report; 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7(1)



 

 

 
(c) agrees that the modified Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan, as shown in 

Appendix B to the report, proceeds to referendum, noting that the costs of 
holding the referendum will be met by the Council; and  

 
(d) agrees that, should the Referendum be passed, authority be delegated to the 

Director of Planning and Regeneration, following consultation with the 
Executive Member for Planning and Development, to make the plan. 

 

 

Reason: 
To fulfil the Council’s obligation under Schedule 4B (12) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, the Executive is asked to be satisfied that the Neighbourhood 
Development Plan, with modifications recommended by the Examiner, meets the 
basic conditions.  
 

 

Confirmed as a true record: 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor SDT Woodward (Executive Leader) 
Monday, 3 June 2019 

 
 

Page 22



 

 

 

FAREHAM 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

2019/20 
Decision No. 

2116 
 

Record of Decision by Executive 

Monday, 1 July 2019 

 

Portfolio Planning and Development 

Subject: Warsash Neighbourhood Plan: Applications for 
Warsash Neighbourhood Forum and Warsash 
Neighbourhood Area 

Report of: Director of Planning and Regeneration 

Corporate Priority: Maintain and extend prosperity; Protect and enhance the 
environment; Providing housing choices; Strong, safe, 
inclusive and healthy communities 

 

Purpose: 
To provide the Executive with the opportunity to consider both applications to designate a 
neighbourhood forum and neighbourhood area for Warsash in light of the requirements of 
the relevant legislation. 
 
On 22 March 2019, the Council (Local Planning Authority) received an application to 
establish a neighbourhood forum and neighbourhood area for Warsash.  Put simply, if both 
designated, Warsash Neighbourhood Forum can then go on to produce a Neighbourhood 
Plan for the Warsash Neighbourhood Area.  
 
This report briefly explains the key requirements within legislation and regulations the local 
authority has to consider when determining any neighbourhood forum and neighbourhood 
area applications.  Then the publicity the Council, as the local planning authority, must 
undertake, along with an explanation of the timescales within which the decision needs to be 
taken and a summary of the outcome of the Council’s publicity on these applications.  

 

 

Options Considered: 
The Executive received a deputation in respect of this item from Mr Matthew Hall.  
 
As recommendation. 

 

 

Decision: 
RESOLVED that the Executive approves the application to designate the Warsash 
Neighbourhood Forum and the application to designate the Warsash Neighbourhood Area, 
as they meet the requirements of the relevant legislation and regulations.  

 

 

Reason: 
Given that both these applications meet the relevant legislation and regulations, it is 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7(2)



 

 

 

recommended that both applications should be approved.  

 

 

Confirmed as a true record: 
Councillor SDT Woodward (Executive Leader) 
 
 
 
Monday, 1 July 2019 

 

Page 24


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Interim Nitrogen Mitigation Solution
	Appendix A

	7 Executive Business
	7(1) Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan: Examiner's Report and Referendum
	7(2) Warsash Neighbourhood Plan: Applications for Warsash Neighbourhood Forum and Warsash Neighbourhood Area
	LUS-190701-Draft decision sheets 1
	LUS-190701-Draft decision sheets 2


